
           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..  

RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..    
 

  

 CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS              MMAAYYOORR 
  Bonnie Arnold                                            488-9246                 Doug Isaacson 488-8584 

  Richard Holm            488-1776 

  Sharron Hunter                                         488-4282                 

    KKeevviinn  MMccCCaarrtthhyy--    DDeepp..  MMaayyoorr  PPrroo  TTeemm                  449900--99003399  

  RRoonnaalldd  JJoonneess  ––  AAlltt..  DDeepp  MMaayyoorr  PPrroo  TTeemm                  448888--33557799  

  Thomas McGhee - Mayor Pro Tem         455-0010  CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 

                 Kathy Weber 488-8583   

 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag  
 

3. Invocation    
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

  

6.      Communications from the Mayor 

 Proclamations 

 Lindsey Elgin – NPE 

 CCLC 4H Group 

 National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

 

 

7.      Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

         Clerk  

 Certification of the October 4, 2011 Municipal Election  

  Oath of Office for Newly Elected Officials 

 Community Reception (20 minutes) 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 o 

RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG    

MMoonnddaayy,,  OOccttoobbeerr  1177,,  22001111  
 

 

  

  

  

  



 

 

9.      Ongoing Projects Report 

   
 

10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

 

11.    Old Business 

 a.  Ordinance 11-06, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 4, 

             Chapter 4.10.010, User Fees 

 

 

12.   New Business 

 a.  Fairbanks Convention and Visitors Bureau Request for 2
nd

 Quarter Bed Tax 

 

 b.  North Pole Economic Development Request for 3
rd

 Quarter Bed Tax 

 

 c.  Recommendation for Skid Steer Loader Equipment Purchase Bid Award 

 

 d.  Recommendation for Heating Fuel Bid Award for 2012 

 

 e.  Surplus Sale of Public Works Boom Truck Bid. 

 

 f. Professional Service Agreement with Jantz & Associates   for Bid Development and 

   Associated Support Service for Utility Garage Construction Project 

 

 g. Mayor Isaacson Request for Partial Reimbursement For Travel To Anchorage, October 

            20 – 23, 2011 

 

 h.  Resolution 11-26, A Resolution of the City of North Pole Canceling the November 7, 

    2011 Council meeting due to the AML Conference 

 

 

13.    Council Comments 

 

14.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing 

impaired individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this 

service.  All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council 

meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City 

Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 

Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

1 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, October 3, 2011 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Doug Isaacson called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, October 3, 2011 to 

order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Ms. Arnold        

Mr. McGhee         

Ms. Hunter          

Mr. Jones      Excused 

Mr. Holm            

Mr. McCarthy           

Mayor Isaacson      

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Isaacson 

  

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Sharron Hunter 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of October 3, 2011 

 

Seconded by Ms. Arnold 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to amend the agenda to consent items under Old Business a. Ordinance 

11-07, An Ordinance of The City of North Pole, Alaska amending Title 4, Chapter 4.08.110, 

Exemptions, Exceptions, and Refunds and under New Business, a. North Pole Community 

Chamber of Commerce Request for 3
rd

 Quarter Bed Tax, and c. Resolution 11-25, A 

Resolution Establishing 2012 Capital Project Priorities For The City of North Pole 

 

Seconded by Mr. McCarthy 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

2 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

On the Amendment 

 

PASSED 

YES –6– Arnold, Hunter, McGhee, McCarthy, Holm, Isaacson 

NO – 0 

Abstained- 0 

 

On the main motion as amended 

 

PASSED 

YES –6–Arnold, Hunter, McGhee, McCarthy, Holm, Isaacson 

NO – 0 

Abstained- 0 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Minutes of September 19, 2011 

 

Seconded by Mr. Holm 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

YES –6–Arnold, Hunter, McGhee, McCarthy, Holm, Isaacson 

NO – 0 

Abstained- 0 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

Communication Highlights from the Mayor for the period ending October 3, 2011 

ISSUES:  

• Utilities Open House: Director of City Services, Bill Butler, is to be commended for his 

correspondence that was mailed to Utility customers and to all voters in North Pole explaining 

the need for North Pole Prop 1. Hopefully, his explanations have been understood by the 

majority of the voters to be a benefit to the Utilities that will not raise the current rates. Only one 

citizen, a landlord, attended the Open House that was held from 5-7 pm on September 27. 

Nevertheless, Bill was extremely prepared and had good presentation material available. I’ve 

given him the night off.  

 

• Kudos to North Pole Beautification efforts! Even the most casual observer can see the efforts 

many people are taking to make North Pole a distinctive community. Approved by the Council, 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

3 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

the North Pole Economic Development Corp has used volunteers from Hectors Welding, Great 

Northwest, and others who are creating a large beautified entry to North Pole, replacing the fence 

that often was a distraction.  Thank you to Buzz Otis and his team!  

 

The Beautification Committee has had several projects, including the painting of the candy canes 

on 5
th

 and 8
th

 Avenue, in conjunction with NPEDC, and have gotten more trash cans in use, and 

very notably have made strides in clearing land for the new ―Photo Stop‖ on the corner of 5
th

 and 

Davis. Thank you, to the army of individuals who have not had weather cooperating with their 

efforts this summer!  

 

And finally, it was my great pleasure to thank in person the North Pole Garden Club who 

diligently plant the flowerbeds around City Hall and the Police Station. The flowers, although 

attacked and eaten by the numerous voles, were remarkable again this year. This unsung group 

does its work so well and we appreciate them and Hazel Rosendahl’s leadership! 

 

As a postscript, I received a call from Phil Zastrow today who is eager to put up lights in the 

roundabouts this weekend. I spoke with Buzz who is expecting to have the new plantings in 

NPEDC’s project also lit this winter.  

 

• FMATS: the Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation System (FMATS) Policy Committee 

met on September 22. Among the Action Items approved were the Safe Routes to School Plan 

which will have 30 days of public review until October 21; and State Funds Recommendation, 

where we tried to preserve as much funds for local roads maintenance as possible. 

 

• Alaska Strategic and Critical Minerals Summit: was held last Friday in Fairbanks and 

sponsored by the Alaska Department of Natural Resources (DNR). It was the largest meeting of 

its type in America. I’ve attached an opinion piece that I’ve submitted, and which the Ketchikan 

Daily News has mentioned they will print. The opinion piece explains more fully the importance 

of  rare earth minerals, also named ―Technology Metals.‖ Even the India Times carried an article 

this weekend titled, ―Alaska May Become Silicon Valley of Rare Earths‖ (also attached for 

further explanation). The India Times quotes Jack Lifton, a consultant for UCORE’s Bokan 

Mountain project, south of Ketchikan. As a result of my introducing Jack to Dr. Shiva 

Hullavarad of UAF’s Advanced Materials Group and a subsequent visit to the lab, UCORE has 

verbally committed to sending all their ore samples to Fairbanks for the complex analysis and 

separation—instead of sending the expensive materials Outside! This benefits all Alaska. Of 

interest, a UAF senior from North Pole also accompanied us on the tour of the Advanced 

Materials Group lab. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

4 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

 

• Other Meetings: included visiting with residents with road repair concerns on North Star; going 

weekly to NPMS and helping with announcements and giving ―Words of Wisdom‖; reading to 

NPE students and their parents during an after school activity night; was a guest lecturer at 

NPHS for Jon Rogers’ Career and Vocational class;  being guest speaker at the North Pole 

Rotary on September 28, addressing the State of North Pole; the Flint Hills Refinery Citizens 

Advisory Committee on September 21, where importantly Mike Brose, Plant Manager, affirmed 

FHR’s commitment with GVEA to trucking natural gas to their plant as it will enable them to 

drastically reduce the cost of production; joined DOT on a tour for legislators, explaining some 

of the projects in North Pole and reiterating our need for DOT maintenance of state-owned roads 

(which includes Santa Claus Lane, St. Nicholas Dr, Badger, Hurst, and Old Richardson); and at 

today’s GFCC Board meeting was successful in getting the recommendation to the State 

Chamber that we support the AGDC’s Alaska Stand Alone Pipeline (ASAP) conditioned on the 

tariff for Fairbanks/North Pole being equal to Anchorage and the terminus to be located in North 

Pole. 

• Memorial Service for 1-25: A Memorial Service in memory of: Sergeant Rodolfo Rodriguez 

Jr., Specialist Ryan J. Cook of 3rd Battalion, 21st Infantry Regiment; Sergeant Timothy D. 

Sayne of 5th Squadron, 1st Cavalry Regiment; and Private First Class Brett E. Wood of 1st 

Battalion, 5th Infantry Regiment, 1-25 Stryker Brigade Combat Team members fallen in action, 

will be held on Thursday, the sixth of October at one o’clock at the Southern Lights Chapel, Fort 

Wainwright, Alaska.  

• NPEDC Receives National Recognition: Congratulations to the North Pole Economic 

Development Corp for being named by the International Sled Dog Race as the Best 10 Dog Race 

in the nation! 

 

• Tanana River Crossing 21-shovel salute: I represented the City at the Tanana River Crossing 

Groundbreaking Ceremony in Salcha on September 28. While I did no speaking (there were 

plenty of high ranking officials for that!) I did join in the ―21-shovel salute‖ and stood by former 

Governor Murkowski who was among the enthusiastic dignitaries who have worked over the 

past decade to see this bridge built. The importance of the bridge, spanning 3300 feet across the 

Tanana, is primarily to enhance the military’s ability to access their training grounds year round. 

In the future, when rail actually is laid, it will also provide the State access to develop mineral 

rich lands.   

  

FNSB ASSEMBLY MEETING:  

The FNSB Assembly met on September 22. Among the actions taken was the passage of 

ORDINANCE NO. 2011-20-1K that includes funding for the North Pole Branch Library 

Replacement Project, as discussed with the North Pole City Council’s approval of CoNP 

Resolution 11-23. Thank you to all the community supporters who were there speaking in favor 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

5 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

of the action. The Assembly voted down an attempt to gut the Ordinance of funds for the North 

Pole library. 

The next regular FNSB Assembly meeting is scheduled for October 13 at 6 pm. The Agenda has 

not yet been posted. For a list of meeting times and agendas, go to 

http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly .   

 

MEDIA: 

 

Sept 24 & Oct 1: Mayor Isaacson was on KJNP (1170 AM, 100.3 FM) 8 – 9 a.m. ―Over the 

Coffee Cup.‖  

 

UPCOMING (see above for other events, dates, and times) 

 

• October 4, 7 a.m. – 8 p.m.: Election Day. 

• October 6, 6-8 pm: FNSB Planning Department Open House for Proposed changes to Title 17 

―Subdivision Ordinance‖ @ City Hall 

• October 6, 6 pm: Mayor Isaacson to deliver Commencement Speech to Wayland Baptist 

University graduates @ NP 1
st
 Baptist. 

• October 10, 6 pm: Beautification committee meets @ Wendy’s 

 

Mayor Isaacson pinned the North Pole Police Department badge on Officer Stevenson and 

welcomed him to the police force. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

 Mr. McGhee stated that the internet is going in and out. 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

 

Accountant 

 Lisa Vaughn 

Ms. Vaughn is working on the audit. 

 

Police Dept 

     
 

Fire Dept 

Dep. Chief Coon  

 Chief Lane is in Anchorage at training. 

http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly


Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

6 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

 Training conference in Fairbanks last week at Westmark Hotel.  330 people registered 

and was successful. 

 Hydrant testing was done earlier this month and all went well. 

 EMT classes started today. 

 Newest hire Zak Rittel is finishing up his EMT 3 class. 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler 

 None 
 

 

 

FNSB Representative 

 The FNSB Assembly met on September 22. Among the actions taken was the passage of 

ORDINANCE NO. 2011-20-1K that includes funding for the North Pole Branch Library 

Replacement Project, as discussed with the North Pole City Council’s approval of CoNP 

Resolution 11-23. Thank you to all the community supporters who were there speaking in favor 

of the action. The Assembly voted down an attempt to gut the Ordinance of funds for the North 

Pole library. 

The next regular FNSB Assembly meeting is scheduled for October 13 at 6 pm. The Agenda has 

not yet been posted. For a list of meeting times and agendas, go to 

http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly  

   

 

City Clerk, Kathy Weber 

October 3, 2011 

Council Report by Kathy Weber, City Clerk 

Here are some of the things that are coming up in the city.  If you have any questions on any 

items below, please feel free to contact me at 488-8583 or email at 

Kathy@northpolealaska.com. 

 The 2011 City of North Pole local election will be held tomorrow.  Polls are open from 

7:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m.  If you know of someone who is in the city limits and needs to vote 

but cannot get to the polls, have them call the clerk’s office at 488-8583 and I will make 

arrangements for someone to go into their home and vote them.    

 I have been in contact with Kathy Doyel of North Pole High School and we will be doing 

the Intern program again this school year.  We are asking for 2 interns and they will 

receive ½ credit for the semester.  The program will begin January 1, 2012. 

 

 The Alaska Municipal League Annual local government conference will take place from 

November 7 – 11, 2011 at the Westmark Hotel in Fairbanks, Alaska this year along with 

the American Planning Association, Government Finance Officers, Municipal Attorneys, 

Assessing, Municipal Management, and Alaska Conference of Mayors.  Newly elected 

officials training will be held on Monday & Tuesday, November 7 & 8, and the 

http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly
mailto:Kathy@northpolealaska.com


Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

7 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

conference from Wednesday, November 9 – Friday, November 11, 2011.  The banquet 

will be on Thursday, November 10, 2011, so if you haven’t gotten your tickets yet please 

let me know.   

 

 The Alaska Association of Municipal Clerks (AAMC) will host their 46
th

 Annual 

conference in November.  This year’s theme is ―The Power Within‖ and we will have a 

dynamic speaker, Dr. Alan Zimmerman.  Dr. Zimmerman is a motivational speaker who 

has won many awards.  He will be our guest speaker at the academy and the topic will be 

―Take this job and love it!‖  The cost is $125 which includes a sack lunch.  I am 

encouraging all employees to take this course.  CEU will be available to those that need 

them.  Please contact me for more information. There is also information and registration 

material in your packets and for the public. 

 

  I will hand over the gavel to Kacie Paxton, Ketchikan Borough Clerk, on Tuesday, 

November 8, 2011 and take my seat as Past President and serve my final 4 year 

commitment.  I have been appointed by the International Institute of Municipal Clerks to 

serve on their Public Relations Marketing Committee for 2012.  I hope that I will be able 

to count on your continued support and have very much appreciated your encouragement 

and support over the past 3 years.  This year as president of AAMC has been what they 

call the ―Best year of my life‖.  I have had awesome opportunities and traveled 

throughout Region IV and represented my state, city, and association at the international 

level.  Without your continued support and belief in me, this would not have been 

possible.  Thank you. 

 

 I will make arrangements after the election to hold a training session with our newly 

elected officials to go over the workings of the city, code, parliamentary procedure, 

ordinances, resolutions, etc. 

 

 I attended the Oregon Association of Municipal Recorders annual conference from 

September 20
th

 – 24
th

 in Portland, Oregon and represented Alaska, AAMC, and the City 

of North Pole.   

 

 City employee Mike Lewis retired on Friday, September 30, 2011 after 30 years of 

service to the city. 

 

 Tomorrow is election day and I would like if everyone could stay after the council 

meeting to help put election boxes together for the canvas board. 

 

 Two groups will be hand counting North Pole ballots at the FNSB on Tuesday night 

because of the write-in election. 

 

 Ms. Weber asked the public to keep their conversations down during council meetings or 

take them outside the council chambers.  She asked everyone to remember to shut their 

cell phones off and that any information that the public wants given to council should go 

through her office first. 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

8 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

 Ms. Weber thanks NPEDC for their excellent efforts at the North Pole Plaza entrance.  

The AML & AAMC conference is in November and they will be bringing out 

approximately 100 visitors from around Alaska to shop and eat in town. 

 

 There are 83 days left until Christmas. 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
 None 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS – 5 Minutes 

 Bryce Ward – 606 6
th

 Ave.   

Mr. Ward spoke on running for city council. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Consented Items 

a. Ordinance 11-07 An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole, Alaska  Amending Title 4, 

Chapter 4.08.110, Exemptions, Exceptions, And Refunds  

 

b. Ordinance 11-08, An Ordinance Amending the 2011 Budget 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 
Consented Items 

a. North Pole Community Chamber of Commerce Request for 3
rd

 Quarter Bed Tax. 

 

c. Resolution 11-25, A Resolution Establishing 2012 Capital Project Priorities For The City 

of North Pole 

 
NORTH POLE POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUEST FOR GRANT ACCEPTANCE 

FROM THE ALASKA HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE IN THE AMOUNT OF $122,178.79 

 Lt. Dutra introduced the grant and gave council facts and figures on the Highway Safety 

Officer.  DUI’s have risen because of the grant officer along with traffic violations.   This 

generated $357,000 in fines which is a significant amount of money.   

 Traffic Officer is responsible for 250 arrests.   

 Seat belt usage has soared.  In 2007 seat belt use in North Pole was 77%.  In 2011 it is 

97%. 

 There have been zero fatalities in the North Pole area since the Highway Safety Officer 

came on board.   

 Have received a lot of equipment, car, computers, radar, all patrol cars outfitted with 

printers and computers. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

9 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

 Grant has provided training for officer. 

 

Public Comment 

None  

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve North Pole Police Department Request For Grant 

Acceptance From The Alaska Highway Safety Office In The Amount Of $107,176 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee thanked Lt. Dutra for continuing to work and obtain the AHSO grant.  He said it 

was disconcerting that there are so many DUI’s. 

 

Mayor Isaacson said that he wanted council see this report and Lt. Dutra verbalize it as it is 

telling on what the Police Department deals with and their hard work. 

 

PASSED 

YES – 6- Hunter, McGhee, Arnold, McCarthy, Holm Isaacson 

NO – 0 -  

Abstained – 0 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Ms. Hunter – the fire department makes her proud that they are able to put on the kind of 

training that they do as it speaks well of our community. She feels a lot more secure knowing 

how well trained they are. 

 

Mr. McCarthy – thanked Buzz Otis for the great job he is doing by Safeway to help spiffy up 

that area. 

 

Mr. McGhee – has been a resident for 17 ½ years and he is grateful for who the NPPD are and 

comforting to know that NPPD has a quality force.  They have a quality staff that will take the 

time to meet our constituents.  NPFD has impressive training and a well trained staff.  He is 

grateful to the Utility Dept as they are cleaning up the streets.  Mr. McGhee said he is concerned 

about one area and that is the back side of homes with 4 wheeler traffic. He understands the 

frustration and has a little empathy for those who owned them as he is also an owner of an ATV.  

He is excited about North Pole election tomorrow an hopes that we don’t’ have to police PM2.5.  

 

Mr. Holm – concerned with a portion of health care in this community that is closing down.  He 

cautioned that this is a symptom of what is coming.  Dr. Cobbett is closing his business and has 

been providing service in the North Pole area for over 30 years.  This will also give a blow to the 

eye glass business in the city.  Economic and community development is more than 

beautification and he tasked the council and NPEDC to work on long range plans to provide 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 3, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

10 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of October 3, 2011 

medical in this community.  He would like to see an Urgent Care clinic or other services in the 

area. 

 

Ms. Arnold – her time on council is coming to a quick close.  She stated that the election will be 

interesting and encouraged everyone to vote.  Thanked everyone for coming tonight.   

 

Mayor Isaacson – was fortunate to greet fire fighters at their conference and how enthusiastic 

they were during his introduction.  It was his privileged to give a proclamation to Dr. Cobbett for 

his service.  The mayor stated that he has been working on trying to get medical services into the 

area since he took office.  They have looked at bring different medical services out here but has 

run into resistance.  No growing community can exist without these services.  North Pole is an 

energy center with electricity and fuel.  The mayor state the we need to make sure our services 

keep pace. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting of October 3, 2011 

 

Seconded by Ms. Arnold 

 

No Objection 

 

The regular meeting of October 3, 2011 adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, October 17, 2011. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      DOUGLAS W. ISAACSON, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

             

                         _____________________________________ 

              KATHRYN M. WEBER, MMC, City Clerk 



























Sponsored by:  Mayor Isaacson 

Introduced and Advanced:  August 15, 2011 

Adopted:  September 6, 2011 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

 

ORDINANCE 11-06 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 

 AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 4.10.010, USER FEES 
 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 

requirements of the City and to provide clarification as needed. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole: 

 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 

 Section 2.  General Provisions of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances are 

amended as follows: 

 

4.10.010 Establishment of User Fees.  

The mayor shall examine the services provided by the city and estalish a user fee schedule with 

council concurrence.  The council shall periodically review the user fee schedule and set user 

fees as appropriate.(Ord.03-10 §2, 2003)(Ord.05-17 §2,2005) 

 

4.10.020 User Fee Schedule 

Ambulance Fee    $800.00  

Ambulance Fee Discount for North Pole Residents -$800.00   $300.00 

Ambulance/Patient transport mileage (loaded miles)   $11.00 per mile 

Ambulance/Patient transport mileage (loaded miles)  

Discount for North Pole Residents 

-$11.00 per mile 

Emergency Fire equipment response to motor vehicle accident   $200.00 

Emergency Fire equipment discount for North Pole Residents -$200.00 

Ambulance Run Reports to Insurance Companies   $  25.00 

Audio Tape Recording of Public Meetings or any other CD/DVD(fee 

collected when ordering, per tape) 

  $  10.00 

Building Permit Fees Based on building evaluation and 1997 

Uniform Administrative Code 

City Annual Business License   $  50.00 

City Business/Sales Tax Mailing Labels (fee collected when ordering)   $  25.00 

Copies of Public Records   $1.00 1st pg; $0.25 thereafter 

City Newsletter Mailing Labels   $  25.00 

Declaration of Candidacy Filing Fee   $  25.00  

Faxes send/receive local calling area (per page)   $    1.00 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Isaacson 

Introduced and Advanced:  August 15, 2011 

Adopted:  September 6, 2011 

Faxes send long distance in U.S. only (per page) $       2.00 

Fingerprinting  per card $     20.00 

Fireworks Annual Permit to Retail Vendor of Class “C” Fireworks $3,000.00 

Hydrant Meter Charge $     50.00/mo.(min) 

Hydrant Meter Water Usage Rate $       0.02/Gallon 

Notary Services per document        $5.00 

Plan Specifications Copies (per set) $     25.00 

Police Reports to Insurance Companies $     25.00 

Photo Copy Fee (per page)        $0.25 

Water/Sewer Connection Inspection Fee $     50.00 each 

Residential Water/Sewer Tie-in Fees (per NPMC 13.08.090 B.1) 

 

$   750.00 each 

Residential Water/Sewer Tie-in Fees Developer-financed (per NPMC 

13.08.090 B.2) 

$   500.00  each 

 

Commercial Water/Sewer Tie-in Fees (per NPMC 13.08.090 B.3) $ 1,500.00  each 

Commercial Water/Sewer Tie-in Fees (per NPMC 13.08.090 

B.4)Developer financed 

 $1,000.00  each 

Residential Water Meter Replacement  $    100.00 

Commercial Water Meter Replacement At replacement cost 

Water meter monitor replacement $    100.00 

(Ord.03-10 Chapter 4.10, 2003)(Ord.06-11 §2(part), 2 

 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City business 

day following its adoption. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 

20
th

 day of September, 2010. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      DOUGLAS W. ISAACSON, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      KATHRYN M WEBER, CMC, City Clerk  
 



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

September 29, 2011 

 

City of North Pole 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole AK 99705 

 

Dear Mayor Isaacson and City Council Members: 

 

This letter is in regards to Fairbanks Convention and Visitors Bureau (FCVB) requesting 

the 2nd Quarter 2011 allotment of the North Pole City bed tax of $1020.50.  The bed tax 

monies reinvested into destination marketing were expended to help fund the following: 

 

The Bed Tax Revenue collection through August 2011 (see North Pole monthly 

attached): 

 

Bed Tax Year To Date Dollar Change through August 
 

  2011 2010   
Net 

Gain/Loss 
 Borough 1,058,805.56 989,402.61   69,403 7.01% 

Fairbanks 1,974,542.62 2,042,150.61   -67,608 -3.3% 

North Pole 67,023.01 52,721.52   14,301 27.1% 

Totals 3,100,371.19 3,084,274.74   
 

 

    
Overall Net 
Gain/Loss   16,096 0.52% 

 

 

The Tourism department has been busy hosting numerous familiarization tours, see 

attached Tourism Department 2011 FAMS schedule.  They also attended the 2011 POW 

WOW Convention as well as currently Ed Malen is participating in JATA and attended 

the Japan workshops and Greg Allison will be attending 2011 Routes Conference with 

Angie Spears from Fairbanks International Airport in Berlin.  

 

Our Director of Communications, Amy Geiger has been busy hosting a multitude of press 

and travel writers, see attached Summer Press Tour schedule.  One of the articles 

Michelle Newman is working on is “Sasha in Santaland” that she hopes to publish in 

AAA Magazine.  Michelle travels throughout the country with Sasha, her 16-year-old  

Chihuahua and has published numerous articles as well as video on traveling with your 

pet. 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 Days of Solstice, an all-expense-paid experience for the Lawson family in the Interior 

of Alaska, social media marketing campaign was successful.  Annie Duffy, our Internet 

Marketing Associate worked with the Lawson family to help them with the posting,  

reposting and tweeting of the events they participated in.  See the attached posting of 

their time in North Pole.   

 

Our Meetings & Convention department hosted their Anchorage Blitz in April where 

they had 21 appointments and met with 31 meeting planners.  They hosted a meeting 

planner luncheon in Anchorage with 45 attendees.  Currently they are working on their 

next UAF Luncheon where they will be meeting with 45 meeting planners.  This 

department is actively working on the upcoming Outdoor Writers Association of America 

conference to be held here in early September 2012 at Chena Hot Springs Resort, see 

attached press release.  Helen Renfrew and Amy Geiger attended the 2011 Outdoor 

Writers Association of America in Salt Lake City Utah to help them prepare for next 

year.  From the information gathered during the 2011 3 day  Conference, most of the 

2012 participants plan to extend their trip to 7-10 days to allow for pre and post 

conference excursions.  At our Membership luncheon on October 12
th

 Chris Batin will be 

presenting an exciting overview of the 2012 conference and potential for the Interior as 

well as ways to become involved.   

 

From January through July 2011, FCVB Visitor Services staff greeted nearly 60,000 

visitors at the Morris Thompson Cultural and Visitors Center.  FCVB also staffs the 

information center at Pioneer Park as well providing bilingual speaking Visitors 

Information Specialists for Japan Airline and Condor flight arrivals at the airport.  

 

Karen Lane and Charity Gadapee headed up the Fairbanks Ninth Alaska Visitor Industry 

Walk for Charity known as the “4K Graze” .  With 600 walkers registered they raised 

$25,863 for the 50 registered 501(c)(3) charities, the grand total for nine years is 

$218,925 raised for local charities.   

 

Deb Hickok’s term as chair of Alaska Travel Industry Association will be culminate at 

the ATIA Convention in Juneau October 3-6, 2011.  As Chair this year she has been 

faced with some unprecedented challenges but over the summer the ATIA Board of 

Directors came together, developed and re-confirmed the direction they would like to see  

ATIA and the State of Alaska proceed in the future.  See attached email, “Where do we 

go from here?” 

 

 

 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

At the August FCVB Board of Directors meeting the Board authorized additional funds 

up to $50,000 to be directed towards Condor marketing program, as requested by Condor 

representative Herwig Oberhuber.  Andy Anger, Deb Hickok and Greg Allison held a 

conference call with Herwig committing the funds to their marketing program.   They had 

a very successful conversation with them about their continued service in 2012 same 

configuration as 2011 and possible future growth.    

 

We are looking forward to an increase from the 12 Japan Airline charter flights (JAL) in 

winter 2010-2011 to 18 charters this coming winter 2011-2012.  They will be running 

from December through March 30, 2012, see attached schedule.   

 

The Morris Thompson Cultural and Visitors Center is planning the last of the interpretive 

exhibits adjacent to the lobby area.  The theme of this “Gateway” exhibit is “Open the 

door and let me discover Interior and Arctic Alaska.”  The intent of these exhibits is to 

excite visitors about the things to see and do in Alaska; to encourage them to ask 

questions from the FCVB Visitors Services staff and NPA park rangers located in the 

lobby area; and, most importantly, to get them out to experience Alaska.  To that end we 

are gathering objects that will be displayed in the “Gateway”, photos or small objects that 

depicts your organization.  If you have questions or would like to donate please contact 

Ashley Ritenour, Executive and Tourism Coordinator at 459-3771 or 

aritenour@explorefairbanks.com. 

 

Thank you again for reinvesting bed tax dollars into destination marketing which has 

shown a proven ability to help generate revenue for your community members.  If there 

are questions, please contact me at my direct line 459-3774 or at 

dmurphy@explorefairbanks.com. 

 

Upcoming FCVB luncheons are October 12, OWAA presentation by Chris Batin; 

November 16, Website presentation by Annie Duffy, FCVB Internet Marketing 

Associate; December 7, Annual Meeting with presentation from Board of Director 

Candidates. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Dawn Murphy 

Finance and Administrative Director 

Fairbanks Convention and Visitors Bureau 

  

mailto:dmurphy@explorefairbanks.com








CITY OF NORTH POLE Amts are booked in the month they are received.  At year, end

BED TAX - Ordinance 09-14 the taxes received in January are accrued back to December,

GL Acct:  01 00 00 5817 in accordance with GAAP.

Quarterly Disbursements  

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

01 02 00 7204 01 02 00 7201 01 02 00 7203 01 02 00 7205

NP Economic NP Christmas 

0.15 0.85 Development Chamber In Ice FCVB

Month Retention Distribution 50% 30% 15% 5% Total

January -                   

February 1,313.34         

March 2,291.49         

  Total 1st Quarter 3,604.83       540.72           3,064.11         1,532.05              919.23                 459.62                153.21               3,064.11    

April 2,927.86         

May 4,762.92         

June 7,446.07         

  Total 2nd Quarter 15,136.85     2,270.53        12,866.32       6,433.16              3,859.90              1,929.95            643.32               12,866.32  

July 11,802.77       

August 17,684.72        

September 19,220.83       

  Total 3rd Quarter 48,708.32    7,306.25       41,402.07       20,701.04           12,420.62           6,210.31            2,070.10           41,402.07 

October

November

December

YE Accrual

   Total 4th Quarter -                 -                  -                   -                        -                        -                      -                      -              

TOTALS 67,450.00     10,117.50     57,332.50       28,666.25            17,199.75           8,599.88            2,866.63           57,332.50  57,332.50  

Per North Pole Chamber of Commerce's request for third quarter bed tax - They will receive $12,420.62.

AMOUNTS APPLICABLE TO EACH ORGANIZATION

Amount



 

Memo 
To: North Pole City Council 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: October 11, 2011 

Subject: Skid Steer Loader bid recommendation 

Background 

The City received a $50,000 grant from the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities. 

The money is federal pass through from the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 

program. The City submitted and was awarded the grant with the intention that the City would 

plow and sweep pedestrian and bicycle paths throughout its jurisdiction. 

 

Recommendations 

1. Award project to lowest cost bidder, Craig Taylor Equipment for $26,189.44 for a S160 

Bobcat Skid Steer Loader.  

2. Purchase all of the added alternates from Craig Taylor Equipment for a total of 

$19,601.71 

3. Use the balance of the project funds, $4,208.85, to purchase a trailer for transporting the 

skid steer loader. With the trailer include necessary equipment to tie down the skid steer 

and removable wheel locks to prevent theft of the trailer.  

4. If there are any grant funds available after the purchase of a trailer, apply these funds to 

the purchase of replacement brushes for the angle broom and/or sweeper. 

 

Bid Results 

In response to the published Request for Bids for a Skid Steer Loader, four bids were received 

(one firm included two separate bids). The bids were opened at 3:00 PM on October 10, 2011. 

 

The bid results are the following: 

 

 

Bidder 

 

Bid amount 

Craig Taylor $26,189.44 

Equipment Source $53,716.00 

Equipment Source $62,286.00 

Airport Rental $35,990.00 

 

  

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-2281 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill@northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 



 

The RFB also included a list of added alternates. The purpose of the added alternates was to 

receive a list of prices for attachments for the skid steer and to purchase as many of the 

attachments as the balance of the remaining grant funds would permit. The added alternates and 

the price provided by the low-cost bidder include the following: 

 Snow plow .............................................................................................................$2,496.34 

 Angle broom ..........................................................................................................$5,248.83 

 Replacement broom ..................................................................................................$574.04 

 Sweeper ..................................................................................................................$3,566.63 

 Replacement sweeper broom ....................................................................................$474.94 

 Dust control kit ......................................................................................................$1,522.90 

 Pallet forks ................................................................................................................$758.05 

 Snow blower ..........................................................................................................$4,959.98 

 TOTAL................................................................................................................$19,601.71 

 



Memo 
To: North Pole City Council 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: October 11, 2011 

Subject: Heating Fuel Bid Recommendation 

Recommendation 

 

Accept heating fuel bid from Alaska Aero Fuel. Of the four bidders, Alaska Aero Fuel 

had the lowest prices for its combined delivery charges and rack prices for both #1 and 

#2 heating fuels. 

 

The City received four bids to supply heating fuel for its municipal facilities for the period 

January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012. All bids were based upon the rack price plus delivery 

and other charges. Based upon the bid conditions, any changes in the rack price will be 

passed on to the City.  

 

Again this year, I requested bidders to provide prices for #1 and #2 heating fuel. The Utility 

Department wanted to determine if the cost differential was small enough to justify 

continuing to use #1 heating fuel to reduce boiler maintenance. Attached are summary tables 

of the bid prices. 

 

The Utility Department will not use #1 heating fuel this heating season. The $0.07 higher 

cost of #1 versus #2 heating fuel will increase fuel charges for the Utility by approximately 

$4,000 based upon the current rack price. We determined that the increased cost exceeded 

labor savings related to boiler maintenance.  

 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-8593 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill@northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 



City of North Pole 

Heating Fuel Bid Summery  

for January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 

 

 

 

#1 Heating Fuel 

 

 

Company 

Delivery & Other 

Charges  

Rack Price (date of 

refinery quote) 

Total per gallon 

price 

Alaska Aero Fuel $0.08 
$3.50 

$3.58 
10/6/11 

Fairbanks Fuel $0.0975 
$3.50 

$3.5975 
10/10/11 

Sourdough Fuel $0.15 
$3.50 

$3.65 
10/10/11 

Alaska Petroleum $0.09 
$3.50 

$3.59 
10/10/11 

 

 

#2 Heating Fuel 

 

 

Company 

Delivery & Other 

Charges  

Rack Price (date of 

refinery quote) 

Total per gallon 

price 

Alaska Aero Fuel $0.08 
$3.43 

$3.51 
10/6/11 

Fairbanks Fuel $0.0975 
$3.43 

$3.5275 
10/10/11 

Sourdough Fuel $0.15 
$3.43 

$3.58 
10/10/11 

Alaska Petroleum $0.09 
$3.43 

$3.52 
10/10/11 

 



Memo 
To: North Pole City Council 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: October 11, 2011 

Subject: Surplus equipment bid recommendation: Boom Truck 

Recommendation 

Sell the boom truck to M.D. Smith for $2,711.00 

 

Notification of the surplus sale of the boom truck was in the Fairbanks Daily News Miner 

four days over two weekends. The boom truck was offered for sale due to its deteriorating 

condition and safety concerns.  

 

The City received three bids for the boom truck: 

 

Bidder Amount 

M.D. Smith $2,711.00 

Donald Davis $2,163.00 

John Ritter $1,605.00 

 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-8593 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill@northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 































Submitted by:  Mayor Isaacson 

Introduced & Approved:  October 17,2011 

City of North Pole 

Resolution 11-26 

 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

RESOLUTION 11-26 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE CANCELING THE  

NOVEMBER 7, 2011 COUNCIL MEETING DUE TO THE AML CONFERENCE 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole holds their regular City Council meetings on the first 

and third Monday of each month; and 

 

WHEREAS, the North Pole Municipal Code states in section 2.12.030 “Regular Council 

meetings shall be scheduled for the first and third Mondays of each month unless 

otherwise posted”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the majority of the North Pole City Council will be attending the Alaska 

Municipal League Annual Conference from November 7 – 11, 2011 to receive training 

on issues facing municipal leaders and to have networking opportunities with other 

communities and municipal officials and ; and 

 

WHEREAS, three of our council members will be attending the “Newly Elected 

Officials” seminar which is one of Alaska’s most highly regarded training programs for 

local leaders; and   

 

WHEREAS, there will not be a quorum to conduct the business of the city on November 

7, 2011 and so the meeting will be canceled due to the AML Conference and only one 

meeting will take place for the month of November which is November 21, 2011 at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas W. Isaacson, mayor of the City of North Pole, do 

hereby proclaim that the meeting of November 7, 2011 will be canceled and only one 

meeting will be held in November which will be November 21, 2011. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on the 17
th

 day of October, 2011. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Kathryn Weber, MMC, City Clerk 


	AG-10-17-11
	Min-10-03-11
	Mayor's Communications
	Proclamations
	Certification of City of North Pole Election on October 4, 2011
	Ord 11-06 User Fee Schedule
	FCVB 2nd qtr 2011
	NPEDC Request for 3rd Qtr Bed Tax
	3rd Q Bed Tax breakdown
	Skid Steer Loader recommendation to Council
	Recommendation to accept 2012 heating oil bid
	Recommendation to accept proposal Boom Truck
	Professional Servce Agreement with Jantz & Assoc 
	Mayor Isaacson Request for Partial Reimbursement for Travel To Anch Oct 20-23
	Res 11-26 Cancel meeting of November 7-11



